ROCKHILL
SOUTH CAROLINA Board of Historic Review Minutes

July 10, 2025

A public hearing of the Rock Hill Board of Historic Review was held on Thursday, July 10
at 6 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 155 Johnston Street, Rock Hill SC.

MEMBERS PRESENT  Ashley Barron, William Drennan, Marcio Hale, Michael James
and Ellen Johnson

MEMBERS ABSENT Martin Goode and Jana Jeanette

STAFF PRESENT Amy Britz and Ainsley Ellis

1. Call to Order

Chairman Michael James called the meeting to order at 6 p.m.
2. Recite the Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of minutes of the June 5, 2025, meeting.

Mr. Hale made a motion to approve the minutes as submitted. Ms. Barron
seconded, and the motion carried by a vote of 5-0 (Goode and Jeanette absent).

4. Public Hearing Items

a. H-2025-03: Consider a Certificate of Appropriateness request for
replacing front porch balusters of 124 Reid Street by Candace
Thompson. This property is part of the Reid Street/North Confederate
Avenue Historic District Area. Tax Parcel 627-16-04-009.

Amy Britz, Planner |, presented the staff report.
There were no questions from the board of staff.
Chairman James opened the floor to the applicant.

The applicant, Candace Thompson, 124 Reid St., Rock Hill, SC, provided a
physical example of the original baluster from the property. She stated the
baluster was taken from the less deteriorated side of her porch. She also
provided the replica of the replacement baluster being made and stated the
crafted baluster was more expensive than the initial proposed baluster from
Lowe’s.

Ms. Johnson asked if the replica baluster is a direct prototype of the
balusters to be installed on the property.

Ms. Thompson confirmed they are the same height and grooves. She noted
it was a challenge to find a woodworker for a quote.

Ms. Johnson asked whether she was going to do the top and bottom railing
of the porch.

Ms. Thompson confirmed her contractor will be creating the railings with
ridges to match the current railing profile.

Page 1 of 5



Board of Historic Review Minutes July 10, 2025

The board thanked Ms. Thompson for her diligence and following the
guidelines.

Chairman James opened the floor for public comment.
There were none.

Ms. Barron made a motion to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness
request for replacing front porch balusters of 124 Reid Street. The motion
was seconded by Ms. Johnson. The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0
(Goode and Jeanette absent).

b. H-2025-04: Consider a Certificate of Appropriateness request to wrap
front porch square column at 353 Oakland Avenue by Elizabeth
Colquhoun. This property is part of the Oakland Avenue Historic
District Area. Tax Parcel 627-22-02-015.

Amy Britz, Planner |, presented the staff report.

Chairman James asked what the city has been doing in reference to the
citations over the past years, because the square column has been
presented for about 6 years.

Ms. Britz noted there have been staff changes, so there has been a bit of a
lag in follow-up, but they have since been pursuing what is needed to gain
compliance and modify the column to its original profile.

Mr. Hale asked whether they would be painting this column.

Ms. Britz said it was not specified in the information provided by the
applicant and the applicant will confirm.

Chairman James opened the floor to the applicant.

The applicant, Elizabeth Colquhoun, 353 Oakland Ave., stated the City
citations were not for a maintenance issue. She noted it is structurally fine.

Chairman James asked whether the columns are existing wood.

Ms. Colquhoun stated both of the center column bases are deteriorating,
but they are stabilized. She also noted the column next to the square
column will most likely need to be replaced within the next few years.

Ms. Barron asked for confirmation whether they approved the square
column as a temporary replacement. She asked whether there is
maintenance able to be done on a continual basis to preserve the existing
columns.

Ms. Colquhoun said their intention is to preserve what is there through
multiple ways.

Ms. Barron asked if the capitals are in good shape.

Ms. Colquhoun said the columns appear to be in good shape and the plans
for painting the whole house will keep the column intact.

Mr. Hale asked whether the side-porch columns had been replaced.

Ms. Colquhoun confirmed the side-porch columns had been replaced, and
the new column will be fabricated like those of the porch. The column will

Page 2 of 5



Board of Historic Review Minutes July 10, 2025

not be structural, but it will be the same material. They will be painted to
match.

Chairman James asked how quickly the column would be installed.

Ms. Colquhoun stated it would take about eight to twelve weeks just for
fabrication.

Ms. Barron stated their biggest concern is the historic homes to be
maintained on an ongoing basis, so we don’t have to go through these
approvals.

Ms. Colquhoun noted their intent to preserve the home now that her family,
the fifth generation, is living in the home with her parents.

Ms. Johnson asked whether she is replacing the entire column, including
the structure inside and the exterior box surrounding the frame.

Ms. Colquhoun confirmed the interior frame and exterior of the column will
have to be replaced.

Chairman James opened the floor for public comment.
There were none.

Mr. Drennan made a motion to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness
request to wrap front porch square column at 353 Oakland Avenue. The
motion was seconded by Mr. Hale. The motion was approved by a vote of
5-0 (Goode and Jeanette absent).

c. H-2025-05: Consider a Certificate of Appropriateness request to add
an awning at 412, 418, and 426 Oakland Avenue by Walker Stockley.
This property is part of the Oakland Avenue Historic District Area. Tax
Parcels 629-06-04-003 to -005.

Amy Britz, Planner |, presented the staff report.
Chairman James asked if they are voting on the color for the awning.

Ms. Britz said it is up to the board to specify their preference for the awning
to match the door or the stone facade to not be as noticeable based on their
expertise.

Chairman James opened the floor to the applicant.

Doug Pointon, 4019 Bentwood, Edgemoor, SC, was present on behalf of
the applicant. He stated the Grace Lutheran Church has no desire to make
a statement with their awning and it to blend as much as possible. He stated
they have had trouble with the doors shutting and sticking, in which several
lock smiths have had to assist. He stated this occurrence is a heat-related
issue and constantly adjusted. It is also a safety problem, as they have
groups in the church in the evening and don’t always close them completely.
Because they don’t shut completely, it also causes water to get inside. They
do not have a preference of either metal or canvas awning, just that they
would prefer a larger awning for sun control.

Chairman James asked if they preferred the photo of the awning with more
coverage over the transom.

Page 3 of 5



Board of Historic Review Minutes July 10, 2025

Mr. Pointon confirmed. He noted the committee preferred something to
match the gray.

Ms. Barron asked how the awning would attach to the fagade.

Mr. Pointon said the awning will have a metal frame and will be caulked at
the metal frame. He stated there is a decorative molding above the red door
where it would be attached.

Ms. Barron asked when the addition to the church was built.
Mr. Pointon answered that the fellowship addition was built in 1979.

Ms. Johnson asked whether those are the only two options to be
considered. She stated the gables on the roof could possibly be fixed to
match the awning.

Mr. Pointon said a gabled entry would draw more attention to the door, and
it would not match the church’s exterior as it is a flat surface.

Ms. Johnson asked whether it has been considered the shingles come
down and extend over the door to match the roof.

Mr. Pointon said there is not a whole lot of room in for it to be possible.

Mr. Drennan worried the gables would take away the image of the original
facade.

Ms. Barron stated they are not doing damage to the original structure
because it was built in 1979. The color should be the church’s choice as it
can be changed in the future.

Mr. Pointon agreed, and they just want it to blend in.

Mr. Drennan stated a metal awning would be a slimmer profile and detract
less than a canvas awning. He stated the metal would last longer so they
would not have to replace the fabric and keep returning in front of the board.

Chairman James agreed and his only concern would be sun exposure, and
the metal would be more durable for the weather.

Ms. Johnson agreed the metal works better.

Mr. Pointon stated they can match that very well.
Chairman James opened the floor for public comment.
There were none.

Mr. Drennan made a motion to approve a metal awning with a color to match
the facade. The motion was seconded by Ms. Barron. The motion was
approved by a vote of 5-0 (Goode and Jeanette absent).

5. OTHER BUSINESS
a. Certificate of Appropriateness’ administratively issued by staff.
b. Continuing Education

c. Board Reappointments: Ms. Britz noted Mr. Goode, Mr. James, and Mr.
Hale were all reappointed for another three years.

Page 4 of 5



Board of Historic Review Minutes July 10, 2025

6. Adjourn.
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m.

Page 5 of 5



